
Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE C

Members of Licensing Sub Committee C are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 24 March 2020 at 6.30 pm.

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall
Tel : 020 7527 3068
E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk
Despatched : 16 March 2020

Membership Substitute

Councillor Michelline Safi Ngongo (Chair)
Councillor Ben Mackmurdie (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Gary Poole

All other members of the Licensing Committee

Quorum: is 3 Councillors

Welcome : Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. 
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached.

Public Document Pack



A. Formal matters Page

1. Introductions and procedure

2. Apologies for absence

3. Declarations of substitute members

4. Declarations of interest

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent;

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.  

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item.

If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item.

*(a)Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain.

(b)Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 

longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 

which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.
 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 

place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.  

This applies to all members present at the meeting.

5. Order of Business

6. Minutes of Previous Meeting 1 - 4

B. Items for Decision Page



1. Kiss Me Lounge, 326 Essex Rd, N1 - Premises licence variation 5 – 82
Canonbury

2. Hdoma Restaurant and Bar, 192 Seven Sisters Road, N4 3NX - 
Premises licence variation

83 – 126
Finsbury Pk

C. Urgent non-exempt items

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

D. Exclusion of public and press

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 
press and public during discussion thereof.

E. Urgent Exempt Items (if any)

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.



ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES - 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

INTRODUCTION TIME 
GUIDE

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-
Committee, Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have 
been given permission to appear) to introduce themselves.

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 
detailed below.

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:

N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to 
present a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the 
report.

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 
representations.
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions.

4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10 mins

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.

6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10 mins

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.

8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 
any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear.

10 mins

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 
Policy.

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 
representations     given above.

CASE SUMMARIES

12)  Responsible Authorities 2
13)  Interested parties mins
14)  Applicant each

DELIBERATION AND DECISION

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee.

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification.

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing.





This page is intentionally left blank



1

London Borough of Islington

Licensing Sub Committee C -  23 January 2020

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee C held at Committee Room 4, 
Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on  23 January 2020 at 6.30 pm.

Present: Councillors: Phil Graham, Michelline Safi Ngongo and Gary Poole

Councillor Michelline Safi Ngongo in the Chair

68 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1)
Councillor Michelline Ngongo welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and 
members introduced themselves.  The procedure for the conduct of the meeting 
was outlined.

69 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2)
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ben Mackmurdie.

70 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3)
Councillor Phil Graham substituted for Councillor Ben Mackmurdie.

71 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4)
None.

72 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5)
The order of business would be as the agenda. 

73 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6)

RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2019 be confirmed as an 
accurate record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

74 PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY REVIEW - ORLEANS, 259-261 SEVEN 
SISTERS ROAD, LONDON N4 2DD (Item B1)
The licensing officer reported that an application had been made for the licence 
holder to be named as the designated premises supervisor (DPS). An additional 
statement had been submitted by the police and a draft operational policy had been 
circulated.  These documents would be interleaved with the agenda papers.

Concern was expressed that the draft operational policy had only been received at 
3pm on the day of the meeting and it would be difficult for members to form a view 
about this crucial document.

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee C -  23 January 2020

2

The police stated that they had reached an agreement with the venue.  There had 
been an incident on Christmas Day where it appeared that door staff had assaulted 
a drunk patron. There had been continued engagement with the licensee over the 
period and it had been determined that whilst there was no evidence of deceit by 
management, failings of this magnitude fell on the DPS.  The police had 
recommended that there be a replacement of SIA provider, a replacement of DPS 
and the implementation of an operation manual.  The venue had agreed with these 
three points. The venue had drafted the operation manual.  This was not the 
finished article and could be amended over time.  The venue had engaged, the 
security company appeared to be suitable although had not been tested on this 
venue and the new DPS was likely to be accepted.  He did not consider that it 
would be appropriate to withdraw the review but stated that they had reached an 
agreement with the venue. 

In response to questions, it was noted that the venue management were not aware 
of the incident and it had only been provided to them by the Council’s CCTV. The 
police were not entirely satisfied with the management and that was why they were 
now requesting a new DPS.  The venue had sourced a new security team and had 
withdrawn an appeal against the interim measures after agreeing with the police 
that they should not rush to re-open before bringing in necessary changes.  The 
new DPS also had an investment in the premises as the licensee and it was 
expected that this would bring an improvement. Police checks had unearthed very 
few serious offences.  Crime at the venue was considered to be low level and the 
number of incidents fairly average for this type of premises. However, the 
implementation of an ID scanning system had taken longer to install than expected. 
The operation manual would need to be developed further as procedures would 
need to be seen how they would work in practice.
The police were unable to say that the venue had attempted to interfere with 
evidence or that they conspired with the security company. They stated that any 
call to the emergency services had not been timely. 

The manager stated that they did not support the behaviour of the security 
company.  They had appointed the security company in May 2019. He had initially 
called Nightsafe following the incident and then called the police once he had seen 
that the patron had cut on his head.  They were forced to accept the closure as 
they no longer had confidence in the security team and would not have time to find 
a new team by New Year’s Eve. There had been a previous incident where a drunk 
customer had said she had been stabbed.  When he examined her as first aider he 
had not seen any blood. She had been very drunk. This was a spurious incident and 
should not be raised again by the police.  There had been an officer panel in June 
2019 and it was accepted regarding this incident that the police should have been 
called earlier. Reporting had been an issue but the operational manual now outlined 
the procedure for these matters. The new DPS would communicate at official levels, 
would have staff meetings and agree new responsibilities with different people. The 
one good thing about the closure is that it had made staff recognise this was an 
interconnected experience.  They had been a responsible venue and were part of 
the community. They belonged to different associations. Proper reporting records 
had been an issue.  Issues with security would be refined during operation. The 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee C -  23 January 2020

3

venue had been open 29 years and had moved with the times, sometimes not as 
quickly as they would like. They provided different entertainment, in a safe 
environment and had made concerted efforts to put things in place. The new DPS 
would be proactive and would implement and refine the operational document.  
They had worked in collaboration with the police and licensing team. 

In response to questions, it was noted that there had been an incident on a female 
in January 2019 and an issue with a door supervisor in May 2019. The female had 
no injury except one that was a couple of days old. Regarding the incident on 
Christmas Day, this was away from the door and had not been seen by 
management. The manager stated that he called the police following the incident 
on Christmas Day.  He had called Nightsafe initially, but when he saw that the 
patron had been injured he called the police.  It was noted that there been enough 
door staff. Regarding the incident in May, the manager stated that he had under 
estimated the severity of the wound and the member of staff was driven to hospital. 
No ambulance had been called. The security team had not been changed due to the 
May incident.  It was expected that the operations manual would help regarding 
incidents, as procedures and checklists would be looked at every day. He 
recognised that he was fallible. He was putting forward a younger team to take 
control. They would be happy to attend the late night levy meetings.

In summary, the police considered that issues would be addressed by a new DPS, 
security team and written operational procedures. 

RESOLVED

1) That the premises licence in respect of Orleans, 259-261 Seven Sisters Road, 
N4 2DD be modified as follows:-.

 The DPS be replaced,
 The SIA provider be replaced
 That a new Operation Manual be agreed with the police and licensing team.

2) The Sub-Committee further decided that the interim steps remain in place 
until all modifications as detailed were met in full or for 21 days, whichever 
was the earlier.

REASONS FOR DECISION
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy. 

The Sub-Committee heard evidence that the licensee had been in dialogue with the 
police following the incident and the suspension had provided an opportunity for the 
police to work with the licensee. 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee C -  23 January 2020

4

The Sub-Committee noted that the incident involved was very serious and the 
manager acknowledged this.  The Sub-Committee noted that the manager had 
extensive experience in the licence trade and that he accepted the interim measures 
had been necessary.  

The Sub-Committee noted that the licensee had taken action to ensure that all the 
proposed conditions would be met. A new DPS had been identified, a new security 
team had been appointed and an operation manual had been drafted and was 
available for the Sub-Committee. The manager submitted that he called the police 
as soon as he had realised that the patron had been injured.  

In making their decision, the Sub-Committee noted the views of the responsible 
authorities in particular, the police who are responsible for crime and disorder. The 
Sub-Committee considered that it was reasonable and proportionate to remove the 
designated premises supervisor, replace the SIA providers and to implement a 
written operation manual which would be agreed with the police and the licensing 
team. 

The Sub-Committee considered whether it was appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives for the interim steps to remain in place, or if they should be 
modified or withdrawn. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that the suspension 
should remain in place until all conditions were met in full or for 21 days, whichever 
was the earlier.  The relatively short timeframe for the continued suspension was 
reasonable in the circumstances and would ensure that the licensing objectives 
would be promoted. 

The meeting ended at 7.50 pm

CHAIR

Page 4



Environment & Regeneration
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s): 

Licensing Sub-Committee - C 24/03/2020 Canonbury

Non-exempt 

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION APPLICATION 
RE: KISS ME LOUNGE, 326 ESSEX ROAD, LONDON  N1   

1. Synopsis

1.1 This is an application for the variation of a premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2 The premises currently hold a licence allowing the following;

 The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on the premises from 11:00 until 22:00
Sunday to Wednesday and from 11:00 until 23:00 Thursday to Saturday.

 Opening hours from 11:00 until 22:00 Sunday to Wednesday and from 11:00 until
23:00 Thursday to Saturday.  The variation application is to:

1.3 The variation is for the following;  

 To add the provision of live music from 23:00 until 01:00 Thursday to Saturday;

 To add recorded music from 23:00 until 00:00 Sunday to Wednesday and from 23:00
until 01:00 Thursday to Saturday. Note, the application states that the music will be
background and therefore, no licence would be needed for this under the current
deregulation of entertainments;

 To add the provision of late night refreshment from 23:00 until 00:30 Sunday to
Wednesday and from 23:00 until 01:30 Thursday to Saturday;

 To extend the sale of alcohol from 22:00 until 00:00 Sunday to Wednesday and from
23:00 until 01:00 Thursday to Saturday

Page 5

Agenda Item B1



 To extend the opening hours of the premises from 07:00 until 00:30 Sunday to
Wednesday and until 01:30 Thursday to Saturday.

Note, the application originally requested performance of dance.  It also included the 
basement and the garden at the back of the premises.  All of these are withdrawn from 
the application.    

2. Relevant Representations

Licensing Authority Yes 

Metropolitan Police Yes 

Noise Yes

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No  

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes - Fifteen 

Other bodies No 

3. Background

3.1 The current premises licence has been in place since 2015, when a new application was 
applied for and granted under delegated authority, as no representations were received.  

3.2 The current premises licence holder, Kiss Me Lounge Ltd transferred onto the premises 
licence in January this year.  The Designated Premises Supervisor, Onder Aydemir was 
varied onto the premises licence in December last year.  

3.3 The application is subject to Fifteen representations from local residents, Islington’s 
Licensing Authority, Noise Service and the Police.  

3.4 On receipt of the representations, the applicant’s agent has been in consultation with the 
Responsible Authorities and wrote an email, which has been passed onto the representors 
outlining the nature of the business.  As a result of the email, some of the representors 
have expressed that they are happier with the application, but have stopped short of 
actually withdrawing their representation.  

4. Planning Implications

4.1    The Planning Authority confirm that the property has an establish A3 (restaurant) use.

4.2 There was no application for the change of use from shop to restaurant, however
streetview records demonstrate that this use has been established since at least August 
2007, and is therefore immune from enforcement action. 

Page 6



5. Recommendations

5.1 To determine the application to vary the premises licence under Section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 These premises are not located in any Cumulative Impact Areas.  

5.3 If the Committee grants the application, it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four
licensing objectives.

6. Reasons for recommendations

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: application form;  

Appendix 2: current premises licence  

Appendix 3: representations; 

Appendix 4: response to residents from applicant’s agent 

Appendix 5: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Background papers: 

None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by: 

Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 7



Appendix 1

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Appendix 2

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Licensing Act 2003 - Licensing Authority Representation 

Application for Variation to a Premises Licence 

Kiss Me Lounge, 326 Essex Road, London N1 3PB 

I am submitting a representation on behalf of the Licensing Authority with respect to the application 

submitted by Onder Aydemir. 

The application is seeking to: 

a) To add the provision of live music, performances of dance until 01:00 Thursday to Saturday

b) To add the provision of recorded music until 00:00 Sunday to Wednesday and 01:00 Thursday

to Saturday.

c) To add the provision of late night refreshment until 00:30 Sunday to Wednesday and until

01:30 Thursday to Saturday.

d) To extend the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol until 00:00 Sunday to Wednesday and until

01:00 Thursday to Saturday.

The existing premises licence allows for the provision of the sale by retail of alcohol from 11:00 until 

22:00 Sunday to Wednesday and from 11:00 until 23:00 Thursday to Saturday.  This application, if 

granted, would constitute quite an extensive change to the premises licence.  

The grounds for the representation are: 

 Prevention of Public Nuisance; and

 Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

Licensing Policy Considerations: 

Licensing Policy 5 and 6 Licensing Hours 

Licensing Policy 7      Operating Schedule 

Licensing Policy 21 Public Nuisance 

Licensing Policy 22 Noise from Licensable Activities 

Licensing Policy 24 Smoking, drinking and eating outside 

Issues of Concern 

 The terminal hours proposed by this application is in excess of the suggested hours in the

Licensing Policy for bars, restaurants and cafes, which is midnight on Fridays and Saturdays.

LP 5 and 6.  The application shows that the premises plans to become a fast food takeaway.

The terminal hour for takeaways is 01:00 Friday and Saturdays. However, under the Licensing

Objectives, it states that the premises will uphold the conditions already in place on the

premises licence.  Condition 5 of Annex 2 of the premises licence prohibits the use of the

premises as a take away, and conditions that the premises will only operate as a restaurant.  No

application was made to remove or vary this condition. If the premises are to be used for

takeaways, no consideration has been given to the potential disturbance of people coming and

going collecting their orders, or noise from motor vehicles if the premises plan to operate a

Rep 1
Appendix 3

Page 26



delivery service. 

 The Operating Schedule must include all information necessary to enable the responsible

authorities or other persons to assess whether the steps outlined for the promotion of the

licensing objectives are satisfactory. This application form is sparse and does not adequately

demonstrate how the applicant will promote the licensing objectives, nor does it address the

relevant guidance contained within the Licensing Policy.  I understand from the Police Licensing

officer, that he met with the applicants prior to this application being made.  A practice

encouraged by the Licensing Authority.  However, despite making several recommendations at

the meeting, none of the measures recommended by the Police Officer were entered onto the

application form, leaving the Licensing Authority concerned as to the standard of management

at the premises.

 Applicants and premises licence holders are expected to address the prevention of

public nuisance issues in their operating schedules. Public nuisance can apply to a wide

range of activities that prevent residents, members of the public or other businesses

carrying out their normal activities.  The Licensing Authority expects applicants and

premises licences holders to suggest and implement measures to minimise public

nuisance associated with the above. This has not been addressed in the Operating

Schedule, especially in light of the later hours applied for. The Licensing Authority would

expect applicants to address matters such as the type of entertainment being provided,

the measures which will be employed to prevent noise breakout from the premises, for

example, the closure of doors and windows.

 The application shows a number of tables and chairs in the back garden and the

applicant has advised that they have plans to allow customers to dine outside.

However, the applicant has not suggested any conditions relating to the use of the

controls which should be present when customers dine outside. The Licensing Authority

recognises that where gardens and tables and chairs outside are provided for smoking,

drinking or eating, users can cause nuisance at all time of the day, but particularly at

night. Where smoking, eating and drinking takes place outside the Licensing Authority

expects applicants to provide comprehensive details in their operating schedule on how

the outside areas will be managed to prevent noise.  The applicant has not addressed

this in the Operating Schedule. The garden area backs onto other gardens and is

overlooked by residential properties and measures must be in place to ensure these

residents are not disturbed at night.

 The plans of the premises do not match the premises as it appears at the time of

application. The premises licence at present is for the use of the ground floor only.  The

application does not actually state that they wish to include the basement or outside for

the sale of alcohol or provision of regulated entertainment or late night refreshment.
Page 27



However, this is shown on the plans. The agents acting in behalf of the applicants have 

confirmed that the premises do not have the required planning permission for the 

outside area. They are recommending a condition to be added to any premises licence 

granted, stating that until planning permission is received, the rear space will not be 

used. They propose that the rear space be enclosed as shown on the plans. They 

suggest that this will limit noise and disturbance to local residents.  The Licensing 

Authority can not comment on a rear structure which has not been built, nor the 

specifications provided.  The agents have not referred to the proposed use of the 

basement. 

Summary 

This application does not make clear the intentions of the applicant in relation to the way in which the 

premises is planning to operate.  There appear to be several anomalies in the application.  The 

Operating Schedule is sparse and there have been no measures or conditions offered by the 

applicants to explain how the Licensing Objectives will be upheld if this extension of hours and 

addition of activities were to be granted.  It is not clear as to whether the errors and lack of information 

in the application is down to the applicant or the agents responsible for submitting the application.     

An officer has met with the premises licence holder and spoken at length to the agents, requesting 

further information and conditions.  At the time this representation was written, no response has been 

received.  At present the Licensing Authority does not have a clear understanding of the application 

and can not therefore suggest appropriate conditions.  

The Licensing Authority seeks to encourage the highest standards of management and control in 

licensed premises.  At the time of writing the representation, the Licensing Authority has concerns that 

along with the errors of the application, the applicant has not considered the Licensing Policy or the 

need to uphold the Licensing Objectives and therefore recommends the refusal of the application.  If 

of course, further information is provided which allays the fears of the Authority, it would consider the 

granting of the application with appropriate restrictions and conditions suggested by the applicant 

and/or Licensing Sub Committee.  

Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 

Public Protection Division 

Islington Council 

0207 527 3031 10 February 2020 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



KISS ME LOUNGE 
C/O Debbie TUMKAYA 
ESI LICENCE & LEGAL CONSULTANCY LTD 
84 HAYES LANE 
BROMLEY 
KENT 
BR2 9EE 

ISLINGTON POLICE LICENSING 
TEAM 
ISLINGTON POLICE STATION 
TOLPUDDLE STREET 
ISLINGTON 
LONDON N1 0YY 

Telephone: 07919547416 

Email: CNMailbox-
.IslingtonPoliceLicensingTeam@met.poli
ce.uk  

22/01/2020 

Dear Debbie  , 

Thank you for the variation application for KISS ME LOUNGE 

LN/15469-201219 2K STEAKHOUSE , 326 ESSEX ROAD N1 3PB to trade as KISS ME 

LOUNGE & BISTRO . 

Please find below 

In confirmation from the earlier email exchanged with Mr Aydemir after a visit before you may 

have been acting for him , he was advised that the basement area floor was not licenced and 

he would need to make legal and planning enquiries possibly in regards to the premises 

hours as they were currently listed and any restrictions re the use of the rear garden he had 

cleared during the building work taking place while I was there .  

I provided him with a licence copy that he had not seen so that he could see that it specified 

on sales only at present and sale by retail of alcohol hours of Sunday-Wednesday 1100-2200 

and Thursday-Saturday 1100-2300 hrs . It also specified under Annex 2.5 conditions has that 

alcohol is only available to people sitting and taking substantial table meals and that the 

premises could not provide any takeaway food or drink service . 

I had previously said that I doubted that if it was found that previous planning decisions were 

to allow  a change to annex 2.5 and there was a suitable wording which the Council could 

agree to that police would be minded to object . 

As you will be aware, police hold responsibility for ensuring that with any application of this 
kind to the Local Authority that licensing objectives are adhered to, and that proposals do not 
invite any heightened risk or likelihood of crime, disorder or anti-social behaviour.  

Pending clarity re your efforts to establish any planning issues involved and with your 
application not making clear that the necessary checks or confirmations have been found I think Police 
would not be able to support off sales . 

Rep 3

Page 32



For restaurants the core hours on page 24 are given as Sun-Thurs 8am-11pm and Fri-Sat 
8am-midnight . For bars the core hours are as above also . These are set out and  detailed in 
the Islington Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2018-2022 as previously advised to Mr 
Aydemir also .The application does not give any clear indications as to the benefit or safeguards in 
place to allow support to trading outside framework hours at present either . 

Apart from the issues as above then in terms of the current conditions in place on the licence 
at the premises there are 5 conditions or updated conditions which I deem appropriate in the 
circumstances that I would expect to see included in this or a future variation application 
should this one be paused or withdrawn , 

These conditions should not affect the intended use or operating policy in any way and 
should be considered as good practice: 

1)*TO REPLACE AND UPDATE THE CURRENT ANNEX 2.6 CONDITION* In the event 
that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, 
the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called
immediately;
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any
identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police;
(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons
present on the premises at all times during operating hours.

2) *TO REPLACE AND UPDATE THE CURRENT ANNEX 2.7 CONDITION8*An incident
log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an
authorised officer, which will record:
(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

3) *TO REPLACE AND UPDATE THE CURRENT ANNEX 2.4 CONDITION* CCTV shall be
installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open for
licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct.
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept
and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request;
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason;
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full
length image of anyone entering;
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part
of the premises accessible to the public;
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the
premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council
officers to view footage on request.
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be
provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the
Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request .

4) *TO REPLACE AND UPDATE THE CURRENT ANNEX 2.3 CONDITION* The premises
will operate a proof of age scheme , such as Challenge 25
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation .

Page 33



(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence ,
or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards , will be accepted .

5) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security . Such
staff and security levels will be disclosed , on request , to the Licensing Authority and the
Police .

I have not included the preferred police wording re alcohol takeaways with food until the 
planning issues are clarified [also I have it that this was not something Mr Aydemir had in 
mind to do in future even if he could amend the current food takeaway restriction in any case] 
. The application doesn’t make clear the reason for off sales request that I can see and goes 
against the current on sales and table service condition which there is no application to 
remove . 

I can identify and supply a police worded condition that allows diners to take away unfinished 
wine etc at the end of their meal if this is the off sales intention and can be clarified .  

I hope that you are happy with the proposed representations and the wordings given and 
await your response in regards to your confirmation of them being acceptable and your 
thoughts and position re the other issues. 

I would of course be very happy to discuss or clarify any queries or reservations you have . 
I would also be happy to meet with you at Police or Council offices or on site if required to 
discuss further if need be. 

Kind Regards, 

Tim 

Tim Livermore| Constable | Islington Borough – Licensing Team 

Address Islington Police Station, 2 Tolpuddle Street , Islington , London N1 0YY 

T07919547416 – Licensing Team mobile 

Email Tim.J.Livermore@met.police.uk  

Email CNMailbox-.IslingtonPoliceLicensingTeam@met.police.uk 

Page 34



Page 35



2

 m    m   m m   V

From:
Sent: 07 February 2020 21:37 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licence application WK/200001070 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Reference: WK/200001070 

Licensing Act 2003 – Premises Licence Application Variation 

RE: Kiss Me Lounge, 326 Essex Road, London, N1 3PB 

We have received notification about the proposed licence application at the above address and would like to submit
certain representations for your consideration.  

As you are probably aware, the Premises Licence Application is made with respect to a commercial unit at 326 Essex 
Road, London, N1 3PB which has been until recently an Argentinian Steak House. 

At present, it is unclear what type of establishment“Kiss Me Lounge” will be. However, we note that as well as seeking
an extension of  its opening hours and  the period during which  the business can sell alcohol  for consumption on
premises, it also seeks a licence in respect of: 

1. Performance of Dancing;

2. Live Music;

3. Recorded Music; and

4. Late Night Refreshment

Based on the name of the premises (Kiss me Lounge) and the Premises Licence Application seeking a licence to allow
the performance of dancing, we are concerned this might be a table/lap dancing club.  

Clearly, the proposed variations to the current licence materially change the way the premises were used previously.
The intended use appears to to be that of a late night bar/nightclub (or even a lap dancing club). Whilst we have no
objection to the premises being used in a similar manner to how it was before (i.e. as a restaurant which closed at
no later than 23:30 and was in line with the quiet character of the area), the Premises Licence Application has caused
significant concerns in relation to the following: 

a. Noise;

b. The possibility/likelihood of disturbance;

Rep 5

Page 36



3

c. Opening hours;

d. People smoking and congregating outside.

Our concerns relate to the following Licensing Objectives: 

Public Nuisance 

Licensing Policy 5 – Licensing Hours 

We would request that the licensing hours are restricted to prevent significant impact on the residential units in the
surrounding area (noting this is a predominantly residential area). 

We are concerned about noise being generated from within the premises (including any music played either recorded 
or live); customers leaving the premises, smoking and congregating outside the premises; and the possible increase
in public nuisance due to the change of nature of the business.  

Licensing Policy 7 – The Operating Schedule 

We have not received any details around how the operator proposes to mitigate the following risks: 

a. increase in noise;

b. possibility/likelihood of disturbance;

c. Opening hours. We should seek clarity on the actual operational hours, how the business will be managed;

d. People smoking and congregating outside.

Licensing Policy 8 – Management Standards 

We would request that in the event that a license is granted in respect of (1) the playing of lice music (2) the playing
of recorded music, and (3) the performance of dance that the hours granted for the premises license are substantially
restricted. 

The hours permitted under the existing licence were sociable, especially considering the residential character of the
area, and should not be extended.  

Licensing Policy 21 – Public Nuisance 

We would request that appropriate restrictions are imposed on the premises licence to prevent public nuisance and
undue disturbance to the residents in nearby residential units.  

As mentioned above we have not been provided with the operating schedule for the business that will be carried out
at the property. We are concerned that the use of the property could have the following impact: 

 Noise;

 Dispersal of patrons;

 Urinating in public

Licensing Policy 22 – Noise Associated with Licensable Activities 

Page 37



4

We have not been provided with any details as to how the noise generated  from the  licensable activities will be
acoustically controlled and engineered to ensure the noise level will not cause undue disturbance. We are concerned
about noise being generated from customers leaving the premises. We would therefore request that the operating 
hours and substantially reduced to those that have been applied for. 

Crime and Disorder 

In the event that the business  is to be run as a  lap or table dancing club then  it  is well know that these types of
establishments are often associated with organised crime.  

Similarly,  it  is well‐known that  late night drinking and food establishments suffer from anti‐social behaviour from 
customers who may have consumed excessive levels of alcohol.  

If  this  is  intended  to  be  a  late  night  bar  then  controls  (such  as  a  requirement  for  properly
recognised/qualified/licensed bar staff should be imposed.  

We would kindly ask you to consider our comments above and trust that you will take appropriate action to 

account for the residents' reasonable concerns. 

Yours faithfully, 

This e-mail is intended for the addressee only. If you have received it in error, please contact the sender 
and delete the material from your computer. Please be aware that information in this email may be 
confidential, legally privileged and/or copyright protected.  

--  
 

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



4 February 2020 

beside a bus stop that has been heavily used by nearby residents, families and school kids.  
Having no tube station nearby, the bus stop is a vital transportation method for many of the 
families and residents in the area including myself.  Having to wait at the bus stop or come home 
to the stop which is right beside a business that sells alcohol, hosting dancing performances and 
live music, with people drinking outside, is truly concerning for residents and parents in the area. 
As a woman, I will feel scared. 

Kiss Me Lounge is located in a quieter and mainly residential area of Essex Road. Residents and 
families in both west and east Canonbury do their grocery in this part and there is a village like 
peaceful atmosphere. I recently bought my flat here expecting that this quiet and peaceful 
environment will be maintained, considering Islington’s office’s recent effort to reduce crimes.  

I sincerely hope that Islington considers residents’ livelihood and public safety as the priority and 
continues to battle alcohol-related crimes. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Letter to Islington Licensing Services  

7 February 2020 

Dear Sirs 

Reference: WK/200001070 
Licensing Act 2003 – Premises Licence Application Variation 
RE: Kiss Me Lounge, 326 Essex Road, London, N1 3PB 

We wish to make certain representations in respect of the above Premises Licence Application. 

By way of background, we consider that it is important that you understand the context in which this 
Premises Licence Application is being made.  

It will be noted that the Premises Licence Application is made with respect to a commercial unit at 326 
Essex Road, London, N1 3PB.  This unit is currently empty having been occupied until recently by an 
Argentinian Steak House.  

It is not entirely clear what type of establishment, the proposed “Kiss Me Lounge” will be.  However, 
we note that as well as seeking an extension of its opening hours and the period during which the 
business can sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, it also seeks a licence in respect of: 

1. Performance of Dancing;
2. Live Music;
3. Recorded Music; and
4. Late Night Refreshment

Given the name of the premises, “Kiss me Lounge” and the Premises Licence Application seeking a 
licence to allow the performance of dancing, we are concerned that this might be a table or lap dancing 
club.  

It is clear that the variations to the current licence go beyond how the premises were used previously 
as an Argentinian Steak Restaurant and the intended use would appear to be more akin to a bar/public 
house (or een a lap or table dancing club) due to the on-site late night sale of alcohol, and drinking 
and dancing elements of the business.  Whilst we have no objection to the premises being used in a 
similar manner to how it was before (i.e. as a restaurant which closed at no later than 23:30, the 
Premises Licence Application causes concerns in relation to the following: 

a. An increase in noise;
b. The possibility/likelihood of disturbance;
c. Opening hours.  We should seek clarity on the actual operational hours, how the business

will be managed;
d. People smoking and congregating outside.

We understand that any representations made in respect of a Premises Licence Application must be 
related to at least one of the “Licensing Objectives”. 

We consider the following concerns relate to the following Licensing Objectives: 

Public Nuisance 

Rep 13

Page 50



Licensing Policy 5 – Licensing Hours 

We would request that the licensing hours are restricted in order to ensure the noise generated does 
not impact upon the residential units in the surrounding area, including but not limited to, above.   

We are concerned about noise being generated from within the premises (including any music played 
either recorded or live); customers leaving the premises, smoking and congregating outside the 
premises; and the possible increase in public nuisance due to the change of nature of the business.   

Licensing Policy 7 – The Operating Schedule 

We have not been provided with any details which explain how the operator will promote the licensing 
objective or address the relevant guidance in the policy.   We would want to ensure that the following 
concerns are adequeately dealt with: 

a. increase in noise;
b. possibility/likelihood of disturbance;
c. Opening hours.  We should seek clarity on the actual operational hours, how the business will

be managed;
d. People smoking and congregating outside.

Licensing Policy 8 – Management Standards 

We have not been provided with any details which explain how the operator will manage the 
premises.  We would want to ensure that the company who will operate the premises licence can 
demonstrate a track record of high standards of management.   

We would request that in the event that a lice is granted in respect of (1) the playing of lice music (2) 
the playing of recorded music, and (3) the performance of dance that the hours granted for the 
premises license are substantially restricted. 

The hours permitted under the existing licence were sociable and should not be extended. 

Licensing Policy 21 – Public Nuisance 

We would request that appropriate restrictions are imposed on the premises licence to prevent public 
nuisance and undue disturbance to the residents in nearby residential units.   

As mentioned above we have not been provided with the operating schedule for the business that will 
be carried out at the property.  We are concerned that the use of the property could have the following 
impact: 

 Noise;

 Dispersal of patrons;

 Urinating in public

Licensing Policy 22 – Noise Associated with Licensable Activities 

We have not been provided with any details as to how the noise generated from the licensable 
activities will be acoustically controlled and engineered to ensure the noise level will not cause undue 
disturbance. 

Page 51



We do not know whether the building was created to implement the “agent of change” principle by 
incorporating a high standard of mitigation measures into the design and construction to protect us 
from the licensed premises.   

We are concerned about noise being generated from customers leaving the premises.  We would 
therefore request that the operating hours and substantially reduced to those that have been applied 
for. 

Crime and Disorder 

In the event that the business is to be run as a lap or table dancing club then it is well know that these 
types of establishments are often associated with organised crime.    

Similarly, it is well-known that late night drinking and food establishments suffer from anti-social 
behaviour from customers who may have consumed excessive levels of alcohol.  

If this is intended to be a late night bar then controls (such as a requirement for properly 
recognised/qualified/licensed bar staff should be imposed.  

Protection of Children from Harm 

We have no comments. 

Public Safety 

We have no comments. 

We should be grateful if you could please take into account the above considerations. 

Yours faithfully 

Email:

Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Dear Resident 

KISS ME LOUNGE, 326 ESSEX ROAD, LONDON N1 3PB 

We are the new management for the above premises and wanted to give the 
local residents some information about what we are hoping to offer you. 

Our menu is a Mediterranean one offering hot and cold starters, delicious main 
courses and exquisite desserts (I have attached a menu for your information).  
Our ethos is of family dining.  All too often, mealtimes are quick, uninspired 
affairs, as many of us have increasing time constraints with busy work lives.  
We want to encourage the family to come and relax and take their time over 
an appetizing meal where they can talk to each other and reconnect after a 
busy week.  There will be background music as you dine to unwind by and at 
the weekends there will be live jazz/classical musicians who will entertain you 
as you tuck into culinary delights from the Mediterranean. 

We appreciate that this music might concern some residents and we are 
working closely with the councils licensing, noise and police departments to 
ensure that we produce a premises licence that considers everyone in the 
vicinity and try to allay any fears or concerns that neighbours may have. 

We will have SIA trained door supervisors who will promote safety in the area 
and stop any unwanted, rowdy behaviours.  CCTV is also operative on the 
premises and any disturbance will be recorded at the premises both on CCTV 
and in the log which will be kept at the restaurant and shared with the police 
and council on request. 

The doors and windows of the restaurant will be kept shut while the music is 
playing so as not to disturb anyone, and the restaurant has been soundproofed 
(documentation can be provided to the council if required). 

There will be notices displayed at the entrance to patrons leaving the 
restaurant to be mindful of local residents and to keep the noise to a 
minimum.  Smokers will be restricted to a maximum of 6 at a time and will not 
be allowed to take their drinks with them in order that they do not prolong the 
time spent outside. 

Alcohol will not be sold or supplied on the premises other than to persons 
taking a substantial meal and for consumption as an ancillary to the meal, so 

Appendix 4

Page 62



we do not anticipate that there will be a considerable increase in drunk and 
disorderly behaviour, and as previously stated, we have SIA trained door staff 
who will make sure that this does not happen.   

The take away facility we hope to offer will be available for pre‐order and we 
do not currently have any plans to join up to a delivery service, therefore, the 
use of delivery vans/motorbikes etc will not be an issue. 

We are always open to local residents coming and talking to us and encourage 
any communication so that we can iron out any possible issues before they 
happen. 

We hope to welcome you to our restaurant and look forward to serving you in 
the very near future. 

Kind regards 

Kiss Me Lounge Directors 

Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Appendix 5 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

1. Signage will be prominently posted requesting customers have respect for the neighbours, and leave the
premises quietly.  The numbers of local taxi services will be obvious and accessible to those requiring
transport after their meal, ensuring that disturbances caused by intoxicated clients be kept to a
minimum and drink driving be actively discouraged.

2. The maximum number of smokers allowed outside the premises at any one time shall be 6, no drinks to
be taken outside, no vertical drinking.  Again signs will be prominently displayed at the exit point to
remind smokers to be considerate to the neighbours while outside the premises.

3. A Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated at the premises:
 All staff will be fully trained in its operation
 Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or a

holographically marked PASS scheme card, will be accepted

4. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function at all times that the premises is open for
licensable activities.  Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:
 The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is

working properly and that the date and time are correct
 A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and

made available to the police or other authorised officer on request
 The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business

for any reason
 One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length

image of anyone entering
 The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the

premises accessible to the public
 The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped
 At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises who

can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on
request

 Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free of
charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act
1998) within 24 hours of any request.

5. The premises shall operate as a restaurant
 In which customers are shown to their table
 Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises and

are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery
 Which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption, but

will provide sealed containers for food to be taken away for consumption in the customers own
home. The take away service offered will be available for diners to pre-order as well as on the
premises.  A maximum of 6 people to be waiting for food at one time in a designated area

 Where intoxicating liquor shall not be sold, supplied or consumed on the premises otherwise than
to persons who are taking a substantial table meal there and for consumption by such a person as
an ancillary to his/her meal with the exception of a maximum of 6 persons in a designated area
waiting to be seated

6. In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been committed on the premises, the
management will immediately ensure that:
 The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately
 As far as is safe and reasonably practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any identified

suspects pending the arrival of the police

Page 76



 As far as is safe and reasonably practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified
crime scene pending the arrival of the police

 Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons present on the
premises at all times during operating hours

 To this end the licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security.  Such
staff and security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police

7. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an
authorised officer, which will record:
 Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue
 Any and all complaints received by any party
 Any faults in the CCTV system
 Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
 Any and all ejections of patrons
 Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
 Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

8. There shall be no entertainments (live or recorded music or the provision of dance) in any outside
areas.

9. Music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound.  The premises is soundproofed to
restrict noise and vibration emanating from the premises to avoid a nuisance to nearby properties

10. Live music will be performed on Thursday, Fridays and Saturday evenings.  Musicians will be singular
or duets/trios playing classical/jazz music to diners.  Windows and doors will be kept closed whilst they
are performing.  In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the
licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence.  If additional speakers are
attached to the structure, they shall be mounted on flexible fixings and shall be positioned away from
the ceiling

11. Noise and/or odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall not
cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.  Any solid fuels used for cooking
purposes shall be of the type approved on the schedule of DEFRA for use in smoke free zones, i.e.
compliant with BS3841.  Appropriate documentation in relation to solid fuels in use shall be kept on
site and available for inspection by authorised officers.

12. There shall be no staff use of the rear garden area after 20:00.  Bottling out from the premises shall be
prohibited between 20:00 hour and 08:00 hours

13. Any off sales shall be limited to re-sealed bottles of wine not wholly consumed by
the customers at the time of dining.

14. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no motorised vehicles are used for deliveries
from the premises.

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the representation from Islington’s 
Noise and Pollution Team – Not agreed at the time of writing the report 

15. There shall be no entertainments (live or recorded music or the provision of dance) in any outside
areas.

16. Customers shall not be permitted to use the outside open rear garden area.

17. There shall be no staff use of the rear garden area after 20:00.

Page 77



 

18. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby properties. 

19. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at the exit requesting the public to respect the 
needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

20. Bottling out from the premises is prohibited between 20:00 hours and 08:00 hours. 

21. No vertical drinking 

22. Music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound. 

23. If speakers are attached to the structure they shall be mounted on flexible fixings and shall be positioned 
away from the ceiling. 

24. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee shall take 
appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. 

25. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall not 
cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. 

26. Drinks shall not be taken outside in open containers for consumption apart from to customers seated in 
any authorised area for external tables and chairs. 

27. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to persons taking table meals 
there and for consumption by such a person as an ancillary to his/her meal with the exception of a 
maximum of 6 persons in a designated area waiting to be seated 

28. Any solid fuels used for cooking purposes shall be of the type approved on the schedule of DEFRA for 
use in smoke free zones i.e. compliant with BS3841. Appropriate documentation in relation to solid 
fuels in use shall be kept on site and available for inspection by authorised officers. 

29. Any off sales shall be limited to re-sealed bottles of wine not wholly consumed by the customers at the 
time of dining and in respect of any takeaway meals sold no more than four beers/ciders or one 750 ml 
bottle of wine shall be sold for consumption off the premises in association with any one order. 

30. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no motorised vehicles are used for deliveries 
from the premises. 

31. If motorised vehicles are used for deliveries, the licensee shall ensure that drivers do not park or loiter 
in the vicinity of residential premises. 

 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the representation from the Police – 
Note, these are almost replicas of conditions 1-14 above, however, conditions 3 and 6 
have been amended and condition 15 has been added.  

1. Signage will be prominently posted requesting customers have respect for the neighbours, and leave 
the premises quietly.  The numbers of local taxi services will be obvious and accessible to those 
requiring transport after their meal, ensuring that disturbances caused by intoxicated clients be kept to 
a minimum and drink driving be actively discouraged. 

 
2. The maximum number of smokers allowed outside the premises at any one time shall be 6, no drinks 

to be taken outside, no vertical drinking.  Again signs will be prominently displayed at the exit point to 
remind smokers to be considerate to the neighbours while outside the premises. 
 

3. The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme. 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation. 
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or a 
holographically marked PASS scheme card, will be accepted. 

Page 78



 

 
4. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function at all times that the premises is open for  

licensable activities.  Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria: 
 The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is 

working properly and that the date and time are correct 
 A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and 

made available to the police or other authorised officer on request 
 The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business 

for any reason 
 One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length 

image of anyone entering 
 The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the 

premises accessible to the public 
 The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped 
 At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises who 

can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on 
request 

 Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free of 
charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 
1998) within 24 hours of any request. 

 
5.   The premises shall operate as a restaurant  

 In which customers are shown to their table 
 Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises and 

are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery 
 Which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption, but 

will provide sealed containers for food to be taken away for consumption in the customers own 
home. The take away service offered will be available for diners to pre-order as well as on the 
premises.  A maximum of 6 people to be waiting for food at one time in a designated area 

 Where intoxicating liquor shall not be sold, supplied or consumed on the premises otherwise than 
to persons who are taking a substantial table meal there and for consumption by such a person as 
an ancillary to his/her meal with the exception of a maximum of 6 persons in a designated area 
waiting to be seated 

 
6.         In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, the 
            management will immediately ensure that: 

  (a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately; 
  (b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any identified 
  suspects pending the arrival of the police;  
  (c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified 
  crime scene pending the arrival of the police;  
  (d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons present on the  
  premises at all times during operating hours. 

 
7. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an 

authorised officer, which will record: 
 Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue 
 Any and all complaints received by any party 
 Any faults in the CCTV system 
 Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 Any and all ejections of patrons 
 Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
 Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

 
8. There shall be no entertainments (live or recorded music or the provision of dance) in any outside 

areas. 

Page 79



 

 
9. Music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound.  The premises is soundproofed to 

restrict noise and vibration emanating from the premises to avoid a nuisance to nearby properties 
 
10. Live music will be performed on Thursday, Fridays and Saturday evenings.  Musicians will be singular 

or duets/trios playing classical/jazz music to diners.  Windows and doors will be kept closed whilst they 
are performing.  In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the 
licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence.  If additional speakers are 
attached to the structure, they shall be mounted on flexible fixings and shall be positioned away from 
the ceiling 

 
11.    Noise and/or odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall not 

cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.  Any solid fuels used for cooking 
purposes shall be of the type approved on the schedule of DEFRA for use in smoke free zones, i.e. 
compliant with BS3841.  Appropriate documentation in relation to solid fuels in use shall be kept on 
site and available for inspection by authorised officers. 

 
12. There shall be no staff use of the rear garden area after 20:00.  Bottling out from the premises shall be 

prohibited between 20:00 hour and 08:00 hours 
 
13. Any off sales shall be limited to re-sealed bottles of wine not wholly consumed by  

  the customers at the time of dining. 
 
14. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no motorised vehicles are used for deliveries 

from the premises. 
 
15.  The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and     

security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police.  

 

Page 80



P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  Environment & Regeneration
  Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 
 
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 
 

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s): 

Licensing Sub-Committee - C 24/03/2020 Finsbury Park 

 

 Exempt Non-exempt 

 
 

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION APPLICATION 
RE: HDMONA RESTAURANT AND BAR, 192 SEVEN 

SISTERS ROAD, ISLINGTON, LONDON, N4 3NX 

1. Synopsis 

1.1 This is an application for the variation of a premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The premises currently holds a licence allowing: 

• The sale of alcohol, which may be consumed on the premises Sunday to 
Thursday 10:00 until 23:00 Friday & Saturday 10:00 until 00:00 

• Live music on Sunday to Thursday 18:00 until 23:00, Friday & Saturday 18:00 
until 00:00. 

• Recorded music on Sunday to Thursday 10:00 until 23:00, Friday & Saturday 
10:00 until 00:00. 

• Performance of dancing on Sunday to Thursday 10:00 until 23:00, Friday & 
Saturday 10:00 until 00:00. 

• Late Night Refreshment Friday & Saturday 23:00 until 00:00 

1.3 The variation application is to allow: 

• The proposed variation is to update the plans of the premises attached to the 
licence and to update the conditions on the licence, including regulating the use 
of the rear area of the premises. 

Page 83

Agenda Item B2



 

2. Relevant Representations 

Licensing Authority Yes 

Metropolitan Police No 

Noise Yes 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: two 

Other bodies No:  

3. Background 

3.1 The current premises licence has been in place since 2005, when it was converted from 
the old premises.  

3.2 The current premises licence holder, Hdmona Restaurant & Bar Ltd, transferred onto the 
premises licence in November last year.  Although the management of the premises has 
been operating the premises for a number of years.   

3.3 The current licence was as a result of a Police review in August 2015. Prior to the review 
the premises had a licence for all activities until 05:00 on Friday, Saturday and Sunday. 

3.4 Therefore, some of the licence conditions in place are the type more associated with a 
late night alcohol venue, so the responsible authorities are in agreement that the licence 
needs to be modified so that it is fit for purpose. 

3.5 There is concern that the premises have been operating in breach of its licence and there 
is special concern about the rear area of the premises that was operating as a shisha 
lounge. This rear area has a fully closable roof and therefore all smoking in this location 
is illegal under the Public Health Act.  

3.6 In addition, there are allegations about people entering the rear of the premises after 
hours. The Licensing Authority have requested footage from the last allegation in 
February and will be able to update the Committee at the hearing.  

3.7 The application is subject to two representations from local residents, Islington’s 
Licensing Authority, and the Noise Service.  

4. Planning Implications 

Page 84



 

4.1 The Planning and Development section have the following comments to make in 
relation to the above license application. 

 
4.2 Planning permission was granted on 7 November 2001 for the change of use of the 

ground floor and basement to A3 (restaurant) and the erection of a rear ventilation flue 
(P010973).  

 
4.3 This was subject to the following relevant condition: - CONDITION 2: The use shall not 

operate except between the hours of 0800 and 2300 on any day.  
 
4.4 This condition had been breached in 2015 by a previous occupier and an enforcement 

notice was issued on 25 August 2015 requiring that the use should permanently cease 
outside the hours of 0800 and 2300 on any day. The notice stays with the land and, 
therefore, any use after 2300 will be in breach of the notice, unless a new planning 
permission has been granted to vary the opening hours.  

 
4.5 In addition, an Enforcement Notice was served on 12 February 2020 regarding the 

erection of an extractor flue on the ground floor rear extension roof and associated 
supporting posts and pipe work and an air conditioning unit on the side wall of the first 
floor rear addition, together with a retractable canopy/blind and roof to the rear of the 
ground floor extension and associated works. This becomes effective on 27 March 
2020, unless an appeal is submitted beforehand.  

 
4.6 If there is no appeal, the notice requires the following:-  

(i) Remove the retractable canopy/blind and associated frame and supporting posts 
attached to the ground floor extension roof, as edged in red on the attached 
photograph and reinstate a roof covering using materials to match the design, 
appearance and height of the remaining existing extension roof. 
(ii) Remove the extractor flue and associated pipes, supporting brackets, framing and 
associated fixings and supporting posts located on the ground floor extension roof, as 
edged in blue in the attached photograph. 
(iii) Remove the air conditioning unit located on the side wall of the first floor rear 
addition and associated fixings and pipework, as edged in green on the attached 
photograph. 
(iv) On completion of steps (i), (ii) and (iii), remove from the Land all materials and 
debris arising from the works. 

 
4.7 The requirement to remove the retractable roof/canopy and reinstate a roof to match 

the remaining extension roof appears to be compatible with that in the license 
conditions proposed. 

5. Recommendations 

5.1 To determine the application for a variation of the premises licence under Section 17 of 
the Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 These premises are located in the Holloway Road and Finsbury Park Cumulative Impact 
Area therefore the Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which 
states that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there 
will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

Page 85



 

5.3 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 4); and 

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four 
licensing objectives.(see appendix 4) 

6. Reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant 
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: application form; 

Appendix 2: representations; 

Appendix 3: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Background papers: 

None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by: 

 

 

 

12/3/2020 

 Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

  

Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 7 of 18

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject 
to change if this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 8 of 18

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 9 of 18

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 10 of 18

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 11 of 18

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is 
successful?

Yes No

Section 12 of 18 Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience 
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and 
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman 
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 1 of 2 

Licensing Authority Representation: Licensing Act 2003 

Application: HD Mona, 192 Seven Sisters Road, London, N4 3NV  

I am submitting a representation on behalf of the Licensing Authority with respect to the 

premises licence variation application.   

The grounds for the representation are: 

• Public nuisance; and 

• Crime and disorder. 

Although this application is for the same hours and activities as the existing licence, the 
current licence has very strict condition on it.  

Licensing Authority, Noise Team and the Police recently met with the applicants and 
possible conditions which could be added to the licence were discussed.  

We agree with the conditions proposed in the application, as this might give the applicant the 
opportunity to run a legal business in a difficult area without causing a nuisance to local 
residents. 

It should be recorded that we have encouraged this application to be submitted as an 
alternative to review by one of the responsible authorities, because of recent issues at the 
premises.  

Islington are still receiving noise complaints from residents regarding noise of customers in 
the rear garden after hours. 

Officers have also witnessed breaches of the previous licence and also witnessed breaches 
of the Public Health Act, namely customers being permitted to smoke shisha in a 
substantially enclosed environment.  

If the licence was to be granted it should be on condition that all sound insulation works are 
completed to the Councils satisfaction prior to the premises being used under the licence. 

The premises are in a cumulative impact area and as such must be able to demonstrate that 
the operation of the premises would not contribute to the problems in an already busy and 
challenging area.  

Licensing Policy Considerations 

Licensing Policies 1 & 2  Location, cumulative impact and saturation 

Licensing Policies 9 & 10  Standards of management  

Licensing Policy 13   Alcohol induced crime  

Licensing Policies 18 & 21  Noise and dispersal  

Issues of Concern 

1. The premises are located within the Holloway Road and Finsbury Park Cumulative 

Impact policy area.  The onus is on the applicant to demonstrate that these premises 

will not add to the cumulative impact.  The applicant has provided a detailed 

operating schedule, however, since taking over the premises, has not demonstrated 

a high standard of management and issues are still arising. Therefore, in my opinion, 

the proposed application will add to the cumulative impact in this location. 

Page 102



Page 2 of 2 

2. In addition, there are significant concerns that the applicants have failed to carry out 

any of the noise insulation works despite operating on a daily basis. 

3. We expect a high standard of management in a premises. In the time that the 

applicants have been operating the premises, there have been issues with 

complaints from residents and officers witnessing licensing breaches.  

 

4. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Licensing Committee considers the application bearing in mind 

the concerns of the Licensing Authority and the conditions suggested by Police and Noise 

Officers and consider whether the applicants can demonstrate that they would not cause a 

nuisance to residents and that they would provide licensable activities responsibly and 

promote the licensing objectives.   

Additional conditions to be considered  

1.  The external rear area with the retractable roof shall not be used at any time. Access 

to this area will only be permitted in the event of emergency evacuation becoming 

necessary. The licensee must ensure that no customers are permitted to use this 

area. 

2. The external rear area shall only be permitted to be brought into use when a 

permanent roof covering is present and sufficient sound insulation is installed to the 

satisfaction of the Pollution team. Closable doors shall be reinstated to isolate the 

rear room from the rest of the premises. 

3. If the rear exit is required as an emergency exit, it shall not be used apart from in an 

emergency where an emergency evacuation is required. Approved security fire 

safety locking devices will be placed on the doors to ensure they will not be used 

apart from in an emergency. 

 

Terrie Lane    

Licensing Manager (Commercial and Licensing)   6 March 2020.  

terrie.lane@islington.gov.uk 

 

Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



From:
To:
Subject: Objection
Date: 24 February 2020 14:34:27

Hi dear sir 192 is not only a bar it’s a gamble place and shisha at the back and every weekend there is fights in
the street in between themselves therefore please consider this matter before allow them licenses thanks I am
from  please dont give them my details thanks.
Sent from my iPhone

Page 120



 

Appendix 3 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule (Please note 
that some of these conditions might be removed or amended if the other conditions are 
agreed.) 

1. Appropriate induction training will be undertaken with all relevant staff to cover appropriate 
subjects for their role including: 

a) The responsible sale of alcohol. 
b) The prevention of under-age sales of alcohol, the Challenge 25 policy and in checking & 

authenticating accepted forms of identification. 
c) The responsibility to refuse the sale of alcohol to any person who is drunk. 
d) Fire safety & emergency evacuation procedures 

2. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or 
an authorised officer, which will record the following: 

a) All crimes reported to the venue 
b) Any complaints received 
c) Any incidents of disorder 
d) Any faults in the CCTV system 
e) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
f) All ejections of patrons 
g) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
h) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

3. CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the premises is open for 
licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria: 

4. The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the 
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these checks, 
showing the date and name of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to Police 
or authorised Council officers on request; 

a) The Police must be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of 
business for any reason; 

b) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full 
length image of anyone entering; 

c) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of 
the premises accessible to the public; 

d) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
e) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided 

free of charge to Police or authorised Council officers on request (subject to the Data 
Protection Act 1998) and within 24 hours of any such request; 

f) At all times, there will be a person on the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to 
allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request. 

5. A Zero Tolerance Policy towards the use, possession and supply of illegal drugs will be 
adopted and enforced.  

6. Any person suspected to be under the influence or in possession of illegal drugs will be 
removed from the premises. Any such incidents will be recorded in-line with the recording 
practices of the premises. 

7. Any person suspected to be dealing illegal drugs or in possession of a quantity of suspected 
illegal drugs which would lead to a reasonable person to believe it to be more than for 

Page 121



 

personal use, will be immediately reported to the police. The premises licence holder and their 
staff will attempt to detain the suspect where it is safe to do so, prior to the arrival of the 
police. Any such incidents will be recorded in-line with the recording practices of the premises. 

8. Where suspected illegal drugs are found in any quantity, they will be seized by staff. 

9. Any seized items which are suspected to be illegal drugs, will be sealed in a Police evidence 
bag, timed, dated & signed by the member of staff seizing the item and placed in the drug-
box contained in the safe. Details of the person from whom the drugs are seized will be 
requested and these, along with details of the seizure, will be entered in the ‘drug seizure log’ 
which will be kept in the same safe.  

10. The ‘Drug Seizure Log’ will contain a minimum of the following information: 

a. Time & Date of the seizure 

b. Full name of the member of staff seizing the item 

c. Name of the Manager on Duty 

d. Number of the Police evidence bag 

e. Name or Description of the person from whom the item was seized 

11. The responsible person shall contact the police at least every calendar month, in months when 
seizures have been made, for them to attend, empty and log the contents of the drugs-box. 

12. Any person found to be in possession of any quantity of suspected illegal drugs will be 
permanently excluded / banned from the premises. 

13. Where any seizure of suspected illegal drugs takes place, a CCTV capture of the seizure will be 
retained by the Premises Licence Holder for a period of 3 months and made available to the 
Police on request. 

14. Any person suspected to be under the influence or in possession of illegal drugs will be 
removed from the premises. Any such incidents will be recorded in-line with the recording 
practices of the premises. 

15. Any person suspected to be dealing illegal drugs or in possession of a quantity of illegal drugs 
which would lead to a reasonable person to believe it to be more than for personal use, will be 
immediately reported to the police. The premises licence holder and their staff will attempt to 
detain the suspect where it is safe to do prior to the arrival of the police. Any such incidents 
will be recorded in- line with the recording practices of the premises. 

16. Any confiscated items which are suspected to be illegal drugs, will be placed in the drug-box 
contained in the safe. Any such seizure will be recorded in-line with the reporting 
arrangements in place. The responsible person shall contact the police at least every calendar 
month, in months when seizures have been made, for them to attend, empty and log the 
contents of the drugs-box. 

17. Any person found to be in possession of any quantity of suspected illegal drugs will be 
permanently excluded / banned from the premises. 

18. Any confiscated suspected illegal drugs which are retained and placed in the safe will be 
photographed and a photographic record will be retained by the premises licence holder for a 
period of 6 months and made available to the Police upon request. 

19. Organised events where regulated entertainment is taking place will be risk assessed to 
identify the requirements for door supervisors: 

20. Where a requirement for door supervisor is identified a minimum of one SIA Registered Door 
Supervisor per 100 customers or part thereof shall be employed. 

Page 122



 

21. Where a requirement for door supervisors is identified, one door supervisor will be employed 
from 21.00 (or the start time of an event if later) until such time as the premises is closed and 
every customer has left the premises and dispersed from the front of the premises. 

22. Where a requirement for door supervisor is identified, a register of door supervisors employed 
will be maintained. This register will record their name, SIA Door Supervisor Licence number, 
contact details and be signed by the Door Supervisor as well as an authorised member of the 
premises management team. 

23. In the event that an assault is committed on the premises (or appears to have been 
committed) the premises licence holder and staff employed at the premises will immediately 
ensure that: 

24. The police (and where appropriate, the London Ambulance service) are called without delay. 
All reasonably practicable measures are taken to apprehend any suspects where it is safe to 
do so; pending the arrival of the police. 

a) The crime scene is preserved so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by 
the police, and 

b) Such other measures are taken (as appropriate) to fully protect the safety of all persons 
present at the premises 

c) A fire risk assessment will be conducted and regularly reviewed. In- line with the Fire Risk 
Assessment: 

d) Heat / Smoke detectors are installed and maintained by a competent person. 

e) Fire extinguishers are installed in accordance with the recommendations of the fire risk 
assessment. 

f) Emergency lighting is installed in accordance with the recommendations of the fire risk 
assessment. 

25. The outside area to the rear of the premises shall be closed after 20.00 until such time as a 
permanent roof has been installed to a specification agreed with London Borough of 
Islington’s Environmental Health Team. This condition shall cease to apply once the 
construction of the roof has been completed. 

26. Customers shall enter or leave the premises by the entrances opening directly onto Seven 
Sister Road, except in the event of an emergency 

27. No commercial waste shall be left on the street, all waste shall be stored in the commercial 
bins provided, prior to collection. 

28. Waste shall not be collected from the premises between the hours of 22.00 and 08.00 on any 
day 

29. Glass Recycling – Glass set aside for recycling shall not be emptied from one receptacle into 
another in any external area of the premises between the hours of 22.00 and 08.00 on any 
day 

30. The area immediately outside the premises will be maintained to ensure that any litter 
generated by the premises and / or its customers is regularly cleared. 

31. When Regulated Entertainment is taking place after 22.00, windows and doors will be kept 
shut, except for normal entrance and egress, to avoid a public nuisance being caused. 

32. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate 
from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which 
gives rise to a nuisance. 

Page 123



 

33. A sign requesting customers to respect local residents and keep noise to a minimum, will be 
displayed in the designated Smoking Area. 

34. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do so 
in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public 
nuisance or obstruction of the Public Highway. 

35. Alcoholic drinks will not be permitted to leave the premises at any time, including for those 
leaving for the purpose of smoking. (Replaces existing condition 30 except the external area 
covered by the Premises Licence) 

36. A sign requesting customers to respect local residents and leave the premises quietly, will be 
displayed at each public the exit to the premises. 

37. A Challenge 25 policy will be enforced, where any person reasonably looking under the age of 
25 shall be asked to prove their age when attempting to purchase alcohol; signs to this effect 
will be displayed at the premises. The only acceptable forms of identity will be those 
photographic identification documents recognised in the Home Office guidance; including 
passports, photo-card driving licence or proof of age card bearing a PASS hologram. 

38. There shall be no children under the age of 18 years on the premises after 23.00. 

39. A register of refusals book or electronic equivalent designed to record all refusals of sales of 
alcohol shall be maintained on the premises and made available to the police and local 
authority officers upon reasonable request. 

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority 

1. The external rear area with the retractable roof shall not be used at any time. Access to this 
area will only be permitted in the event of emergency evacuation becoming necessary. The 
licensee must ensure that no customers are permitted to use this area. 

2. The external rear area shall only be permitted to be brought into use when a permanent roof 
covering is present and sufficient sound insulation is installed to the satisfaction of the 
Pollution team. Closable doors shall be reinstated to isolate the rear room from the rest of the 
premises. 

3. If the rear exit is required as an emergency exit, it shall not be used apart from in an 
emergency where an emergency evacuation is required. Approved security fire safety locking 
devices will be placed on the doors to ensure they will not be used apart from in an 
emergency. 

Conditions proposed by the Council’s Noise Service 

4. The external rear area with the retractable roof shall not be used at any time. Access to this 
area will only be permitted in the event of emergency evacuation becoming necessary. The 
licensee must ensure that no customers are permitted to use this area. 

5. The external rear area shall only be permitted to be brought into use when a permanent roof 
covering is present and sufficient sound insulation is installed to the satisfaction of the 
Pollution team. Closable doors shall be reinstated to isolate the rear room from the rest of the 
premises. 

6. If the rear exit is required as an emergency exit, it shall not be used apart from in an 
emergency where an emergency evacuation is required. Approved security fire safety locking 
devices will be placed on the doors to ensure they will not be used apart from in an 
emergency. 

7. Any customers who want to smoke will be directed to the private frontage area at the front of 
the building. 

Page 124



 

8. Customers will not be permitted to take drinks off the premises at any time. 

9. There shall be no music or other amplified sound in any outside open areas at any time. 

10. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby 
properties. 

11. In the event of a noise complaint substantiated by authorised officers, the licensee shall 
reduce all levels of amplified sound until such works are carried out to contain sound and re-
assess sound levels at the premises to the satisfaction of the Pollution Team. 

12. The maximum agreed levels of all amplified sound shall be expressed on the premises licence 
using the following values: Linear dB, “A” weighted dB, 63 and 125 Hz dB. All values shall be 
expressed as one-minute Leq’s (averages). Measurement points for each room of 
measurement shall also be expressed. 

13. A noise limiting device or devices shall be installed and the entertainment noise control system 
shall be monitored, checked and calibrated as necessary, so that the levels approved by the 
Council, are not exceeded. 

14. The controls for the entertainment noise control system shall be located in a secure, lockable 
cupboard or similar location. The entertainment noise control system is to be independent of 
control by persons other than the licensee. Access to the entertainment noise control system 
is to be restricted to the Licensee or a designated manager. 

15. Doors and windows to the premises will be kept closed, so far as practicable, at all times when 
noise generating regulated entertainment is taking place i.e. live and recorded music. 

16. If speakers are attached to the structure they shall be mounted on flexible fixings and shall be 
positioned away from the ceiling. 

17. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building 
shall not cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity 

18. Any solid fuels used for cooking purposes shall be of the type approved on the schedule of 
DEFRA for use in smoke free zones i.e. compliant with BS3841. Appropriate documentation in 
relation to solid fuels in use shall be kept on site and available for inspection by authorised 
officers. 

19. The licensee shall develop a Noise Management and Dispersal Policy to control noise coming 
from the venue, including people noise, and to control noise from customers either 
congregating outside or leaving the area. The Noise Management and Dispersal Policy shall be 
agreed with the Council’s Licensing Authority and be reviewed and revised periodically or after 
incidences to ensure that public nuisance is prevented from recurring. 

 

Page 125



Page 126


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 Kiss Me Lounge, 326 Essex Rd, N1 - Premises licence variation
	B2 Hdoma Restaurant and Bar, 192 Seven Sisters Road, N4 3NX - Premises licence variation



